Fire Protection Services 

NNA21630R

Questions/Comments and Answers/Responses:  12/08/2005


1.
Are there existing automatic aid and mutual aid plans currently in place?

There is a current mutual aid plan.  An automatic aid plan is currently being explored.

2.
Will this contract have a reimbursable line item to be used by the contractor for purchase of approved supplies, materials and/or stock items as necessary?

Yes.

3.
Is the Service Contract Act incorporated into this contract? And if so is a Department of Labor AWD or a CBA in place.  Will a copy of whatever is applicable be provided in the RFP.

The Service Contract Act applies to this contract.  There is a current CBA and it will be made available to prospective offerors upon release of the final RFP.

4.
Is there a Government provided on-site automated system for tracking employee training, qualification and performance?  Is there an automated system for evaluating contractor performance such as turn out time and response times?

Not at this time.

5.
In the draft RFP, it refers to the possibility that Oral Presentations may be required.  If Oral Presentations are required will they be recorded, evaluated and scored.   If the Orals were to be evaluated and scored then we would assume that there would be detailed criteria for the Orals presentation in Sections L and M?  Additionally, would there be a requirement for the orals to be conducted by the contractor’s proposed key individuals such as the Fire Chief or Chief Fire Officer.

The oral presentation may be recorded.  The oral presentations will be evaluated and scored.  Additional details will be provided through publication of draft RFP sections L and M.  

6.
Concerning the section 3.0 Applicable Regulations, Standards and Guidelines, we noted that the National Aerospace Standard (NAS) 3306 was not referenced.

This is correct.  NAS 3306 is a voluntary advisory standard and not identified in any of NASA’s regulatory requirements.

7.
Reference Draft Acquisition Plan, Plan of Action, Section 7, Security - Will there be a cost to the contractor for the background checks?

No.

8. 
Reference Draft Acquisition Plan, Plan of Action, Section 4, Contracting Considerations - Is the government willing to consider an “Award Term Incentive” 
similar to that being considered by the Johnson Space Center for the Center Operations Protective Services (COPS) contract?

This is not under consideration at this time.

9.
Reference Draft Statement of Work (SOW Section 3.0 Applicable Regulations, Standards and Guidelines - Will a technical reference library with the Ames Policy Guides (APG), NASA Policy Directives (NPD) and NASA Procedural Requirements (NPR) be established for the bidders to reference?

Yes.

10.
Reference Draft Statement of Work (SOW) Section 4.3.3 Mutual Aid - Will the membership fees in the Santa Clara County Fire Chief’s Association be the responsibility of ARC or the contractor?

The fees are the responsibility of the Contractor.

11.
Comment:   Reference Draft Statement of Work (SOW) Section 6.1.1.2 Performance Standards - Please verify the NFPA references listed.  My research indicates that they are from NFPA 1710 not NFPA 1500.

SOW Changes made as noted.

13.
Where does the fire department go to do their annual structural and ARFF live fire training?

ARFF live fire training is currently being accomplished at Travis AFB.  Structural live fire training is accomplished on-site, or through arrangement with surrounding municipal fire departments and joint training exercises.

14.  
Section 6.1 (inclusive) references NFPA 1500 standard regarding response standards.  Is the correct reference NFPA standard 1710?

See 11 above.

15.
Section 4.2.7 refers to maintaining a medical oxygen cache.  What is the required cache amount?

There is no specific required amount.  This is established by  the ARC Technical Area Manager (TAM).  Currently there are 20 medical oxygen cylinders, size “D” (4.25Liters).

16.
Section 4.3.6 refers to supplying emergency medical services at the EMT-D level.  Does this include transport capability?

No.

17.
Section 4.2.23 refers to replacing PPE, uniforms, etc.  Do these items then become the property of NASA?

Yes.

18.
Do the members of the NASA/AMES Fire Department belong to a union? If the answer is yes can we have the name of the union and a copy of their current labor contract? If there is a union at what rank level does union membership stop?

Yes.  International Association of Firefighters Local # I-79.  There is a current CBA and it will be made available to prospective offerors upon release of the final RFP.  

19.
Is the issue and type of uniform items provided to each Firefighter defined in the labor agreement?  If not will you define the amounts and types of uniform items to be provided? 

The issue and type of uniform items provided are not defined in the labor agreement  (Reference SOW paragraph 4.2.23).  The Government specifies only that the uniform meet applicable standards.

20.
Will you define what the protective clothing issue will be?

Reference SOW section 4.2.23.  Existing inventory of protective clothing will be transferred to the contractor upon award.   The contractor is responsible for maintenance and/or replacement of inventory during performance of contract.  

21.
(Reference SOW) Section 4.2.18.  Do fire department personnel conduct their own SCBA mask fit testing or is it performed by an outside agency?

The annual SCBA mask fit testing is conducted in-house by a fire department staff member. 

22.
As I read the Draft SOW I see reference to oral presentations and references that talk about other methods of proposal submittal. Can you clarify as to how you want the proposals submitted? 

· Will you require a written technical proposal showing how the bidder 
will meet Mission Suitability requirements, cost documents and past 
performance documents and an oral presentation?

· Will you require cost and past performance sections submitted in writing 
and the Mission Suitability section of the proposal presented in oral 
presentations?

This will be clearly stated in the RFP section L, Instructions to Offerors.

23.
With thirty eight years experience in the fire and emergency services venue I have had the opportunity to gain a lot of experience relative to how companies should protect themselves during a bid process.  Based on that experience I would recommend that you place very well defined fire and emergency service experience parameters in your Statement of Work. Suggested experience requirements would be;

Bidder must have at least ten years of verifiable fire and emergency service experience in the following categories:

· Fire Protection and Emergency Services Operations and Management

· Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting Services

· Industrial Fire and Emergency Services Operations and Management

· Incident Management

· Fire and Emergency Service Records Management

· Fire and Emergency Service Performance Based Training Programs

· Emergency Medical Services Operations and Management

· Response to Hazardous Materials Emergencies

· Technical Rescue Services

· Fire Prevention; Pre-Fire Planning, Code Enforcement and Fire 
Prevention Education Services.

· Emergency Preparedness

· Being audited by US Government 


Use of the above criteria will ensure that all of the companies bidding this project 
have the required knowledge, experience, skills, management programs, 
operational experience and ability to provide the level of service and operational 
stability you are requiring.

The experience requirements of fire department personnel are identified in the SOW.  Past performance will be evaluated in accordance with RFP sections L & M.

24.
I would recommend that each bidder provide three years worth of audited financial records.

Required cost/financial information will be identified in the RFP. 

25.
Each bidder should be required to provide a performance bond in the amount of 100% of their bid cost for the initial two years of the contract as program protection for NASA if the bidder defaults.

A performance bond is not required.  Liability insurance requirements are identified in the RFP.

26.
I did not see listed in the furnished equipment sections the equipment for testing foam discharge quality for the ARFF units. Is that equipment available to the contractor?

The testing equipment is not government provided.

27.
(Reference SOW) Section 4.2.22.  Will an inventory of equipment requirements for the agencies listed in this section 
be provided?

No.  The equipment is to be compliant with NFPA 1901.

28.
(Reference SOW) Section 4.3.8.1.5 Fire Chief Qualifications:

· Can certification from FEMA showing completion of the FEMA 
Department of Homeland Security National Incident Management 
System - Incident Command System (NIMS-ICS) training and 
certification 
program be used as an equivalency in place of the 
California IMS certification for initial employment?

This is an acceptable equivalency.  The SOW will be revised to allow for equivalent training.

· Potential applicants for the position of Fire Chief will come from fire 
and emergency service backgrounds where they hold current NFPA Pro-
Board or IFSAC certifications that meet current NFPA Standards. These
 
personnel hold National Certifications at Fire Officer 4, Fire Instructor 


2, Fire Inspector 2 and Haz-Mat Operations Level. Are these acceptable 
certifications for the position of Fire Chief?

These are acceptable certifications.

· This is the type of person we would like to propose for the position of 
Fire Chief:


Our professional person for the position of Fire Chief has thirty plus 
years of experience in Industrial Fire Protection, ARFF, Fire Service 
Training and Emergency Management. He holds current certification 
from the International Association of Fire Chiefs Commission on Chief 
Fire Officer Designation as a Chief Fire Officer, has an Associate of 
Science Degree in Engineering Technology, a Bachelor of Science 
Degree in Fire Science and a Master of Science Degree in Fire Service 
Administration. He holds Level III Certification in Homeland Security 
and is certified as an Emergency Manager. 

Would the person described above suffice as meeting the intent of the 
qualification standards in your Statement of Work for the position of 
Fire Chief?

NASA-ARC will not endorse or pre-qualify any fire department personnel.

29.
(Reference SOW) Section 5.1.2.  To comply with the SOW the fire department must be capable of responding to two incidents at the same time. To accomplish this mission requirement the fire 
departments shift staffing would have to meet the NFPA 1710 requirements for minimum staffing on the Initial First Alarm Assignment of 15 persons.

Under normal operational circumstances fire departments would respond to the incident using its normal staffing resources. The Shift Commander or the first arriving Company Officer will when arriving on scene order the remaining response resources to hold in staging until the initial investigation is complete. 

If visual indications or radio traffic received enroute to the scene indicate a working fire or an actual rescue or Haz-Mat situation all additional resources can be directed straight to the scene to meet the NFPA 1710 requirement of 15 persons on scene in eight minutes 90% of the time.

· Can the assumption be made that local automatic aid and mutual aid fire 
department resources are available to meet the requirements of NFPA 
1710 and allow Ames Fire Department resources to be available for a 
simultaneous second call?

The assumption cannot be made as there is not currently an automatic aid agreement in place, however NASA-Ames Fire Department is a member of the Santa Clara County Fire and Rescue Mutual Aid Plan.

· Does NASA Ames want to staff the fire department to meet the 
minimum NFPA 1710 staffing requirements of 15 persons on scene in 
eight minutes to ensure that the Ames Research Center maintains an 
emergency response stand alone response capability for initial response 
and response to two simultaneous alarms?

Yes

30.
Who provides BLS or ALS ambulance transport services?

BLS/ALS transport is provided by American Medical Response (AMR) under separate contract. 

31.
Who provides ALS EMS support?

ALS EMS support is provided by American Medical Response (AMR).

32.
Because the fire department is now going to be operated under a stand alone contract do you want an Administrative Assistant or Secretary position included 
for the department to manage payroll, admin, records etc.?

This determination is the responsibility of the offeror.  

33.
Will the Contractor be required to provide cell phones or are cell phones provided by the Government.

All required communications equipment will be provided by the Government.

34.
Will the Contractor be required to provide recall pagers for the members of the fire department or are recall pagers provided by the Government?

All required communications equipment will be provided by the Government.
35.
Response to vegetation and brush fires is identified in the draft SOW. I did not see a brush type fire apparatus listed as part of the vehicle inventory. 

· Does the fire department currently have a brush fire response vehicle?

· If not is one projected for the future?

The fire department does not have a brush fire response vehicle and there is none projected for the future.

36.
The SOW specifically references the fire departments responsibility to establish a Rapid Intervention Crew (RIC). I did not see a Rapid Intervention Crew equipment pack or the RIC SCBA air supply unit.

· Is a dedicated RIC Pack in service in the fire department or do you want 
the contractor to provide the equipment required in a RIC Pack?

The equipment required for the RIC is Government provided.

37.
(Reference Draft Acquisition Plan) Page 14, Section #19

Who will provide and maintain all of the radio communications equipment for the operation of the fire department (mobile radios, portable radios, base station radios, mutual aid radio equipment, flight line radios, tower radios, antennas etc.)?

All required communications equipment is provided and maintained by the Government.
38.
Who will be responsible for the maintenance, repair and replacement of the fire stations kitchen appliances? Is there and inventory of appliances in the fire station kitchen?

The Government is responsible for the maintenance, repair and replacement of the fire stations major kitchen appliances (Stove, refrigerator, and dishwasher).  There is a partial inventory of other kitchen appliances in the SOW Appendix B, which are not Government maintained and/or replaced.

39.
Can you provide an inventory list of the computer equipment that will be 
furnished to the contractor?

The current list of government furnished computer equipment is as follows:

· Eight (8) desktop PC’s, including monitors

· One (1) laptop PC

40.  Note: The following information was requested by an interested party and is based on the previous two fiscal years, (FY 2004 fire service provider was California Air National Guard, and FY 2005 fire service provider was SecTek, Inc.)

1) Staffing:

a) Total number of personnel assigned to program.

b) Fire Protection personnel

i) Total assigned

ii) Total chief officers

iii) Minimum daily staffing

iv) Minimum daily chief officer coverage

c) Minimum daily resource availability by type

i) Minimum staffing for each resource

d) Duty statements for all assigned classifications

e) Overtime expenditures

i) Total hours or costs for Cal Guard

In reference to Item 1 Staffing, please refer to the previously posted Historical and Background Study.  

2) Activity/demographic information:

a) Estimated daily population

i) Day

ii) Night

iii) Annual calls for service with breakdown by type

In reference to Item 2, Activity/Demographic Information, please refer to the previously posted Historical and Background Study.  

3) Command and Control:

a) Dispatch and resource tracking requirements/procedures

Dispatch and resource tracking requirements/procedures are not included in the SOW for Fire Protection Services at ARC.

b) EOC staffing

i) Fire protection staffing

Please refer to the posted Draft SOW.

ii) Number of activations

The EOC has been officially activated once annually over the last two years.

iii) Frequency listing for all channels used directly by Moffett or by agreement with other agencies.

Radio communications for the ARC Fire Department operates on a trunked radio system and specific frequencies are not available.

4) Training/Pre-Fire

a) Total hours with breakdown by category

b) Total hours delivered to non-fire personnel with breakdown by category

c) Level of involvement if fire marshal program

The requirement for Pre-Fire and training activity is included in the SOW.  Historical information is not available.

5) Budgeting:

a) Breakdown of all Operating Equipment and Expenses by SECTEC

b) Annual certification costs for:

i) Aerial ladder and platform

ii) Air monitoring equipment

iii) Crash/Rescue apparatus

iv) Air-filling system

The Government's current best estimate of contract ODC requirements will be made available to all offerors in Section L of the Final RFP.

c) Missing equipment on inventory list.

i) Will this equipment be replaced prior to contract or will special dispensation be made for contractor to replace.

No, this equipment will not be replaced prior to contract.  Estimated ODC requirements, including replacement equipment, will be made available to all offerors in Section L of the Final RFP.  

d) Annual equipment maintenance costs

i) For each piece of rolling stock (fire apparatus and support vehicles)

ii) Facility utility costs (government or contractor responsibility)?

iii) Cost for recurring janitorial services

The Government's current best estimate of contract ODC requirements will be made available to all offerors in Section L of the Final RFP.
6) Miscellaneous:

a) What security clearances are required for assigned personnel?

None.

b) IT Security

i) Clearances for personnel access

All NASA-ARC on-site contractors and civil servants are required to complete annual IT security training.

ii) Ability to integrate systems (CDF/NASA)

Unknown.

c) Sample of NASA From 533M

This will be made available as part of the Final RFP.

d) Sample of RMS and requirements

This information is not available.

